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          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Welcome,

          3  everyone, to today's hearing of the Committee on

          4  Public Safety, in which we'll be discussing two

          5  pieces of legislation sponsored by Council Member

          6  Alan Gerson, and to addressing the public safety and

          7  nuisance issues created by illegal and exhibitionist

          8  behavior by motorcycle operators.

          9                 I'd like to take a minute to

         10  acknowledge the work of Alan Gerson, his tireless

         11  efforts on this behalf. If you think motorcycle

         12  noise is annoying, you haven't seen Alan in pursuit

         13  of a hearing on one of his bills. Your constituents

         14  should absolutely appreciate that about you, Alan. I

         15  mean it in the fondest way.

         16                 It actually says here, my next line,

         17  many residents affected by bikes will thank you as

         18  well. It says that, I didn't know that.

         19                 The first proposed bill is an

         20  Introduction Number 218, prohibiting individuals

         21  from engaging in exhibitionist behavior. Now, first

         22  of all, this does not mean riding motorcycles naked,

         23  as someone has asked me. The bill defines

         24  exhibitionist behavior as operating a motorcycle

         25  with only one wheel in contact with the ground,
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          2  increasing the speed of the motor, whether or not

          3  the motorcycle is in motion and creating

          4  unreasonable noise or participating in speed

          5  contests or display of excessive speed.

          6                 These behaviors endanger both the

          7  rider and the bystanders. In 2004 I actually

          8  introduced legislation to create the crime of drag

          9  racing. The Council and the Administration agreed on

         10  it, it was signed into law. There is some question

         11  as to whether that law encompasses motorcycles.

         12                 This law will go a long way to

         13  eliminating that confusion and make sure that

         14  everyone knows that motorcycles are included when we

         15  discuss illegal drag racing.

         16                 The second bill, Introduction 416,

         17  will prohibit the parking of motorcycles equipped

         18  with straight pipes on City's streets. A straight

         19  pipe is defined as a motorcycle exhaust device that

         20  does not contain internal baffles or that is

         21  intentionally designed to allow for internal

         22  baffling to be fully or partially removed.

         23                 Federal regulations require that all

         24  motorcycle exhaust systems contain noise-dampening,

         25  typically baffles, a series of passages through a
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          2  muffler that dissipates sound. A motorcycle

          3  outfitted with an exhaust system consists of

          4  straight pipes, which are hollow chrome tubes that

          5  lack any type of noise-dampening system, with a

          6  thunderous roar and deafening staccato sounds. These

          7  are the ones that set off the car alarms that our

          8  constituents all complain about, and I'm told they

          9  reach 110 decibels, which are basically the same

         10  level as a jet taking off at 1,000 feet.

         11                 And New York State Vehicle and

         12  Traffic Law already bans the sale, installation and

         13  use of straight pipes. This proposed introduction is

         14  intended to enhance the City's ability to enforce

         15  already-existing state laws in several ways.

         16                 First, to give four different

         17  agencies, Police, Consumer Affairs, Environmental

         18  Affairs and Transportation, enforcement

         19  capabilities.

         20                 Second, the explicit offense of

         21  parking a motorcycle with a straight pipe would be

         22  made easier for agencies to enforce and catch

         23  violators. It's much easier, safer and subject to

         24  less error and uncertainty to identify a straight

         25  pipe on a park vehicle, rather than a moving target.
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          2                 Finally, and perhaps most

          3  importantly, these laws delineate violations and

          4  civil penalties and increase penalties for multiple

          5  violations and provide for the forfeiture of the

          6  vehicle.

          7                 Some of these motorcycle operators

          8  obviously will pay the penalties but just don't want

          9  their vehicle forfeited or touched in any way. So,

         10  this will also help with enforcement.

         11                 So, what we intend to do today is to

         12  begin to take the squeal out of the hogs, and I'd

         13  like to again thank Alan Gerson for his tireless

         14  efforts here, writing up these bills. I think

         15  they've existed for a few years now, and you've been

         16  working on them. And I want to welcome Council

         17  Member Oddo, our Minority Leader, Council Member

         18  Yassky and Council Member Addabbo, and the entire

         19  staff sitting here to my right. So, thank you for

         20  all your work. And now I'd like to call, I believe

         21  Assistant Commissioner Sue Petito told me she will

         22  be the only one testifying, although apparently

         23  you're not the one in the bike unit. I don't know

         24  how I know that, but...

         25                 I'm sorry, let me turn it over to
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          2  Alan Gerson for a moment for a brief opening

          3  statement.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair. Other than to thank you for responding to our

          6  tireless efforts and the team and my colleagues in

          7  the Department, I'm going to defer comment until

          8  after the testimony in the interest of getting the

          9  hearing going.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         12  Council Member.

         13                 Commissioner Petito, thank you for

         14  being with us this morning. I look forward to your

         15  testimony, and please introduce who you are with.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Yes.

         17  Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the

         18  Council. I'm Susan Petito, Assistant Commissioner of

         19  Intergovernmental Affairs of the New York City

         20  Police Department. I am joined today by Lieutenant

         21  Brian Franklin of the Patrol Services Bureau,

         22  Sergeant Joseph Murphy of the NYPD's Highway

         23  District, and Attorney Neil Berman of the Legal

         24  Bureau Civil Enforcement Unit.

         25                 On behalf of Police Commissioner
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          2  Raymond Kelly, I would like to thank you for the

          3  opportunity to discuss the bills before you today,

          4  Intro. Nos 218 and 416.

          5                 We share the Council's concern

          6  regarding unreasonable noise generated by

          7  motorcycles, whose operators fail to appreciate the

          8  public harm and annoyance they cause. In recognition

          9  of the problem that some motorcycle operators

         10  create, the State Vehicle and Traffic Law, or VTL,

         11  establishes prohibitions regarding equipment and

         12  noise levels specifically for motorcycles.

         13                 VTL section 375 sets forth general

         14  equipment requirements for motor vehicles in New

         15  York State, violation of which are traffic

         16  infractions.

         17                 Subdivision 31 describes the

         18  permissible muffler and exhaust system specifically

         19  referencing prevention of noise, and requires that

         20  motor vehicles operated on public streets be

         21  equipped with an adequate muffler and exhaust system

         22  properly maintained with no cut out or bypass and

         23  with no modification to amplify or increase the

         24  noise.

         25                 Subdivision 31-A makes it a traffic
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          2  infraction to sell, install or use a motorcycle

          3  exhaust device without internal baffles known as

          4  straight pipes.

          5                 Subdivision 31-B prohibits selling,

          6  installing or using a motorcycle exhaust device that

          7  is intentionally designed to allow for the internal

          8  baffling to be fully or partially removed or

          9  interchangeable.

         10                 VTL section 381 goes further

         11  addressing itself to motorcycle equipment in

         12  particular.

         13                 Subdivision 11 prohibits operation on

         14  a public street of a motorcycle, which is (1) not

         15  equipped with a muffler to prevent excessive or

         16  unusual noise; (2) equipped with a muffler from

         17  which the baffle plates screens or other original

         18  internal parts have been removed or altered; (3)

         19  equipped with an exhaust device without internal

         20  baffles known as straight pipes; or (4) equipped

         21  with an exhaust system that has been modified in a

         22  manner that will amplify or increase the noise

         23  emitted by the motor of such vehicle above that

         24  emitted by the exhaust system originally installed

         25  on the vehicle.
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          2                 Subdivision 12 similarly prohibits

          3  operating a motorcycle, which is equipped with an

          4  exhaust device that is intentionally designed to

          5  allow for the internal baffling to be fully or

          6  partially removed or interchangeable.

          7                 Beyond equipment specifications, the

          8  VTL sets forth permissible sound levels for

          9  motorcycles, as measured from 50 feet away. Section

         10  386, Subdivision 3 (d) makes it a traffic infraction

         11  to generate sound exceeding 82 decibels while

         12  traveling at 35 miles per hour or less, or 86

         13  decibels while traveling over 35 miles per hour.

         14                 However, the City's Noise Code also

         15  establishes permissible sound levels for

         16  motorcycles, violation of which is a misdemeanor,

         17  punishable by up to 20 days and/or a fine of $50 to

         18  $500 for a first offense, with penalties increasing

         19  for multiple violations.

         20                 Currently, the Noise Code providers

         21  for a general prohibition against unreasonable

         22  noise, and specifies maximum decibel levels for

         23  motorcycles, which differ slightly from the decibel

         24  levels contained in the VTL.

         25                 However, effective July 1, 2007, when
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          2  the new Noise Code goes into effect, Administrative

          3  Code Section 24-236, will make some changes. It will

          4  adopt the VTL's noise standard for motorcycles and

          5  it will add a new noise standard for motorcycles,

          6  the plainly audible standard. It will be illegal for

          7  a motorcycle to generate noise which is plainly

          8  audible to someone 200 feet away.

          9                 With this comprehensive set of laws

         10  in place to address the problem of unreasonable

         11  motorcycle noise, and the additional enforcement

         12  option we will have in July, one may well wonder why

         13  this problem is not easily eradicated. The major

         14  reason is that motorcycles in motion are usually

         15  gone before an enforcement action may be taken, and

         16  all that remains is the memory of the ear-splitting

         17  sound.

         18                 Motorcycles are also more difficult

         19  to overtake in a dense urban environment using a

         20  standard patrol car, a situation in which the safety

         21  of the public must be considered paramount.

         22                 Another problem, especially with

         23  respect to the enforcement of the equipment

         24  violations, is the technical nature of the

         25  violation. An unaltered muffler closely resembles a
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          2  regular muffler -- I'm sorry. An altered muffler

          3  closely resembles a regular muffler, and police

          4  officers are not experts in detecting internally

          5  altered muffler systems, except, of course, for the

          6  noise.

          7                 The language of the VTL presents a

          8  high technical burden to establish that a muffler

          9  was altered, for example, or has no baffles, or is

         10  intentionally designed to allow for the internal

         11  baffling to be fully or partially removed or

         12  interchangeable.

         13                 In fact, based on our understanding

         14  of modern motorcycle mechanics and exhaust systems,

         15  almost every motorcycle falls within this last

         16  description which renders this subdivision of both

         17  the bill and VTL Section 381 out of date.

         18                 We also note that a motorcycle

         19  muffler can be made noisier by doing something as

         20  simple as drilling holes in it, a circumstance which

         21  is not covered by the bills but is covered by the

         22  VTL.

         23                 In sum, the best and most reliable

         24  evidence of an altered muffler is undoubtedly the

         25  noise it creates.
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          2                 Therefore, we suggest that enacting

          3  more laws regarding motorcycle noise is not

          4  necessary or useful.

          5                 With respect to Intro. 218, which

          6  prohibits exhibitionist behavior, we suggest that

          7  the conduct sought to be addressed is similarly

          8  covered by existing laws.

          9                 VTL Section 1212 makes it a

         10  misdemeanor to engage in reckless driving, defined

         11  as driving in a manner which unreasonably interferes

         12  with the proper use of the public streets or

         13  unreasonably endangers the users of the public

         14  street.

         15                 VTL Section 1182 and Administrative

         16  Code Section 10-163, both misdemeanors, prohibit

         17  drag races. The intended prohibition of wheelies is

         18  also addressed by language contained in the

         19  Administrative Code section regarding the raising of

         20  a vehicle vertically, as an indication that the

         21  operator is engaging in a race, exhibition or

         22  contest of speed.

         23                 We have identified several drafting

         24  issues concerning both bills which we would be

         25  pleased to discuss on a staff level. However, there
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          2  are two specific issues presented by the bills on

          3  which we would like to offer our comments regarding

          4  the adjudication process and the seizure and

          5  forfeiture provisions.

          6                 Both bills give the Environmental

          7  Control Board responsibility to adjudicate the

          8  violations they create, reckless motorcycle

          9  operation and motorcycle equipment violations.

         10                 Given the nature of the subject

         11  matter and the lack of experience the ECB has in

         12  this area, placing adjudication authority within the

         13  ECB is not practical.

         14                 The Traffic Violations Bureau remains

         15  a more appropriate and experienced forum.

         16                 Of course, the ECB is expert in

         17  adjudicating noise violations, and we suggest that

         18  current law acknowledges this as a preferable

         19  alternative to address the problem.

         20                 Regarding seizure and forfeiture, we

         21  understand that a primary goal of the legislation is

         22  to enable an enforcement officer to seize a

         23  motorcycle or a straight pipe which has been used to

         24  violate the law. Generally speaking, the Police

         25  Department has the authority to seize vehicles which
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          2  do not comply with equipment safety standards, but

          3  alternative authority exists for seizing and

          4  forfeiting such equipment through Administrative

          5  Code Section 14-140, which allows the Police

          6  Department to seek forfeiture of property, which is

          7  the proceeds or instrumentality of crime.

          8                 The process set forth in the bills

          9  receiving and forfeiting property conflicts with the

         10  process that already exists, and would not enhance

         11  enforcement efforts but rather confuse them.

         12                 Thank you for giving us the

         13  opportunity to discuss the bills before you today,

         14  and we will be pleased to answer any questions you

         15  may have.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

         17  just want you to know, I have already instructed my

         18  staff prior to your testimony to make sure that

         19  there is no conflict between what exists now

         20  regarding forfeiture and what our bill says and that

         21  our bill was going to be changed, so that there is

         22  no -- there aren't two separate forfeiture

         23  processes.

         24                 I want to, so many questions have

         25  popped into my mind, but first I'm going to go to
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          2  Council Member Gerson's since these are his bills,

          3  for questions.

          4                 Thanks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chair.

          7                 Let me first address Intro. 416. I'll

          8  confine my questions primarily to that, and I'll

          9  defer to the Committee and then I'll reserve the

         10  opportunity to come back.

         11                 First of all, it's always good to be

         12  with you and have the opportunity to work with you,

         13  dialogue with you. Even when we disagree, we have

         14  the same common goal of serving the public in mind,

         15  Ms. Petito, and I recognize that our City is

         16  fortunate to have you and your team as public

         17  servants.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Thank

         19  you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let me also

         21  thank you for your suggestions of a couple I think

         22  very well put technical amendments to our bill. I

         23  think the point of the problem of holes in the

         24  muffler should be -- this is a first hearing of this

         25  session on these bills, so that should be added as a
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          2  condition that should be explicitly spelled out as

          3  something to be looked for and made a violation, and

          4  I think your point of utilizing the Traffic

          5  Violations Bureau is something we need to at least

          6  further consider. It sounds like it might be a very

          7  good suggestion.

          8                 Then let me just also, Mr. Chair, my

          9  colleagues, I think the testimony we have heard very

         10  well outlines the current catch-22 communities and

         11  individuals plagued with this excessive noise face.

         12                 If you look at the Police

         13  Department's testimony, what they are saying is that

         14  the only real way to get at this problem is to hear

         15  the noise from the motorcycle, and they are then

         16  citing the laws governing the laws from the

         17  motorcycle, which require measurements at a certain

         18  distance away from the motorcycle, and in most of

         19  the cases when the noise, when the motorcycles are

         20  making that noise, which requires the amendment, the

         21  motorcycles will be in motion on our streets and the

         22  police have just said for very legitimate safety

         23  reasons they cannot, they will not, and I agree that

         24  they in most situations should not chase and get at

         25  those motorcycles because of the safety problems
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          2  that raise.

          3                 So, therefore, we are currently faced

          4  with the catch-22 that we have this horrible noise

          5  generated by engines, under the current law and the

          6  current process the only real way to identify that

          7  there is a problem is when the noise is being

          8  generated while the motorcycles are in operation,

          9  and the police won't chase the motorcycles, and

         10  hence, my colleagues, what is happening in

         11  communities plagued with this problem is nothing is

         12  done.

         13                 And so, therefore, the purpose of 416

         14  -- and, look, you could argue the theory of the law

         15  and you could tell me what could happen, but the

         16  reality is that for the reasons I set forth, nothing

         17  is done, and we will hear testimony to that effect.

         18                 The only time something is done is

         19  when the Department, when the Department of

         20  Transportation set up very labor-intensive

         21  checkpoint operations involving Police Department

         22  personnel, Transportation Department personnel, and

         23  for limited period of times there is an impact, but

         24  the labor intensity of those operations makes it

         25  impossible to sustain.
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          2                 So, what we have tried to do in 416

          3  is give the Police Department an additional too, by

          4  making it clear that they have the authority to

          5  target and to get at motorcycles with the equipment

          6  which we know creates the noise while those

          7  motorcycles are parked, and by increasing the

          8  penalties for equipment parked with or using the

          9  straight pipes or the other tampered or illegal

         10  equipment.

         11                 So, let me ask you, let me just, with

         12  that as a context, do you agree that we currently

         13  have a problem in many communities of excessive

         14  noise generated by motorcycles with, you know,

         15  straight pipes or racing engines or other elicit

         16  equipment?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         18  agree that that problem certainly exists. I don't

         19  know that the extent of it, the extent of it varies

         20  certainly throughout this City and precinct

         21  commanders are charged with the responsibility to

         22  respond to the complaints that come in about those

         23  motorcycle exhaust noises. And they do. I would

         24  disagree with your suggestion that nothing is done.

         25  It's done on a local level and perhaps it needs

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  constant attention. Certainly during the summer it's

          3  more prevalent than in the winter, but precinct

          4  commanders are aware of this as an issue and address

          5  it. They get many 3-1-1 complaints about this and

          6  they do enforcement actions on a routine basis, and

          7  it may not be a planned operation. It may be they

          8  get a complaint, they go out and they find several

          9  motorcycles parked in a location that's generating a

         10  lot of noise, it may not even be one motorcycle

         11  generating an excessive amount of noise, but when

         12  you have 20 motorcycles, all there separately legal

         13  but revving their engines together, the police will

         14  take action and they'll disperse that group.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: But will they

         16  take action if those 20 motorcycles are moving?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: If

         18  they can, yes. If they can. But often, as we pointed

         19  out, no, because it's not prudent to chase them.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Usually it's

         21  not prudent to chase them in residential areas,

         22  wouldn't you agree?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Yes,

         24  that's right. Except it depends on the circumstance

         25  --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: How often do

          3  you think it is that 20 motorcycles are going to rev

          4  their engines while stationary, while under

          5  observation by a police officer?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We get

          7  complaints of that, because there are certain

          8  locations that they attract groups together, but,

          9  again, we get the 3-1-1 complaints about it and we

         10  respond to them.

         11                 All I am saying is that it is not

         12  something that does not get any attention, but I

         13  understand the frustration that you're expressing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let me just

         15  point out the noise from these motorcycles, this is

         16  more than just an inconvenience of quality of life.

         17  These are so loud and so intrusive and oppressive,

         18  it's on the level, as I would describe, of a

         19  physical assault, when it generates into residential

         20  units at all hours of the day and night, and after

         21  these motorcycles pass by, as the Chair mentioned,

         22  the vibrations set off the car alarms. So, we have

         23  kind of like a double-whammy. And you're absolutely

         24  right, it's a very seasonal phenomena. I say

         25  elsewhere in the country and many parts of our
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          2  region come the spring the birds return and our

          3  communities come the spring the noisy motorcycles

          4  return, and that marks the beginning of the warm

          5  weather season. While I welcome the warm weather, my

          6  first thought on the way here was are we going to

          7  have more motorcycle noise.

          8                 But why can't we make it easier for

          9  you to get at these motorcycles while they are

         10  stationary, open to public view, with illegal

         11  straight pipes, or as you've identified, and I

         12  appreciate that, with holes in the straight pipes,

         13  or with the illegal engines. So when a police

         14  officer walks by a street and sees such motorcycles

         15  parked, instead of just walking by, which I have

         16  observed on countless occasions, and you just cannot

         17  tell me that doesn't happen, instead of just walking

         18  by he could look at the motorcycle, you know, he's

         19  not involved with another matter, and look at the

         20  engine and look at the straight pipe and if it is a

         21  violation, issue the summons and if he has a record

         22  from the license plate of these being repeat

         23  violators, impound the motorcycles without there

         24  having to be any operation. Wouldn't that help you

         25  in your policing?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: If it

          3  was impossible to tell whether a motorcycle muffler

          4  has had its internal baffles removed by looking at

          5  it, yes, that would be helpful, but that's the

          6  fundamental problem that we have, is that we believe

          7  that it's not possible to tell whether that

          8  motorcycle has had its internal baffles removed, and

          9  one of the definitions in the bill also refers to a

         10  motorcycle muffler that has been intentionally

         11  designed to have its baffles be interchangable or

         12  removable, and as we understand it, that's virtually

         13  every motorcycle that's manufactured today.

         14                 So, I think that it is certainly a

         15  worthwhile thought, but the practical application

         16  will not work because we cannot tell walking down

         17  the street, a police officer will not be able to

         18  tell that that particular motorcycle muffler has

         19  been altered.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, actually,

         21  Mr. Chair, I may be able to cut my questioning a

         22  little short, for a change, because I think we've

         23  just made great progress. I think we've just heard

         24  testimony to the effect that it boils down to a

         25  technical factual issue of whether or not it is
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          2  feasible for officers, obviously whether or not it's

          3  feasible to train officers to readily identify most

          4  of the motorcycles which will create the problems

          5  upon operation.

          6                 We have a conflict in testimony. We

          7  have heard Ms. Petito's testimony. We have just been

          8  given written testimony from the New York

          9  Motorcycle, representative of the New York

         10  Motorcycle Council, who could not be here but who

         11  has appeared in past hearings, who points out, Mr.

         12  David Mangeim,, who points out that it is possible

         13  and very easily, in most cases, not in every case,

         14  but in most cases, to make the identification. So,

         15  what I would like to suggest, I don't think we're

         16  going to be able to resolve the technical issue at

         17  this sitting, what I would like to ask, Ms. Petito,

         18  is could we follow-up this hearing with a meeting

         19  between the NYPD technical experts on this issue,

         20  and the technical experts with whom we have

         21  consulted who have obviously a difference of

         22  opinion, and let's get the -- and I don't purport to

         23  be a technical expert, let's get them together to

         24  bang their heads together and see if they could

         25  reach a consensus on the technical issue.
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          2                 I found that when you get experts,

          3  even if they start off with a different opinion

          4  sometimes in a room and charge them with trying to

          5  work it out, they often can.

          6                 So, can we, I think it would be

          7  worthwhile to engage in an exercise, can we do that?

          8  Can we agree to follow-up this hearing with a

          9  meeting between the experts, you know, between now

         10  and when we will have a second hearing on this bill?

         11                 I'll be relentless about getting the

         12  second hearing.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We

         14  will certainly discuss that with the Mayor's Office

         15  and we'll let you know, absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. Well, I

         17  would appreciate it, if you would let us know as

         18  soon as possible.

         19                 I would like to challenge us to try

         20  and work out this problem this winter so come this

         21  spring we could announce to New Yorkers that we have

         22  a new, whether it's a new law or a new policy or a

         23  new enforcement mechanism in place that will assure

         24  a quieter spring and summer and fall from these

         25  motorcycles.

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 I mean, the status quo in too many

          3  places, as you'll hear testimony, just a little bit

          4  about, is just not acceptable. I've heard others

          5  crying about the impact on their kids, sick people

          6  being made more sick from this, people saying, you

          7  know, they're at their wits end and they're going to

          8  move, and the police officers in the precincts have

          9  told us, and we can see by observation, that they

         10  feel they don't have the tools to deal with this

         11  right now.

         12                 So, if we could resolve the technical

         13  issue, I think, you know, we've agreed that we have

         14  a way of proceeding.

         15                 Let me just reserve the right to come

         16  back and defer to my colleagues for additional

         17  questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sure. Thank you,

         19  Council Member. I'd like to introduce Council Member

         20  Dan Garodnick, who has joined us today.

         21                 Ms. Petito, I heard your testimony,

         22  and first of all, one of the reasons I supported

         23  your Noise Code, as did many of us, was the effect

         24  that it's going to have on motorcycles, and we thank

         25  you for that. The 200-audible noise rule is going to
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          2  be a huge help when that comes into place. But we're

          3  trying here to work with you to be more help, and I

          4  agree with Alan, we'll set up something after this

          5  is offer and I'll have one of my staff members

          6  there, too, with some of our motorcycle experts.

          7  Alan is correct, we do have some testimony here

          8  which will be entered into the record from David

          9  Mangeim, M-a-n-g-e-i-m.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mangeim.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What is it?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mangeim.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Mangeim,

         14  whatever, from the New York Motorcycle Coalition,

         15  who unfortunately does not say how these pipes can

         16  be rectified, but does say that it is possible with

         17  proper instruction. So, that's something we need to

         18  sit down with him and discuss and with you and see

         19  if it's possible. Otherwise, that portion of this

         20  bill may not be necessary.

         21                 The punishment portion, though, is

         22  something I want to speak to you about.

         23                 You went through your entire

         24  testimony and said that there are traffic

         25  infractions, and every one of us in the room has
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          2  been guilty of traffic infractions, and will be in

          3  the future. It's not all that much of a deterrent.

          4                 This bill, though, allows for the

          5  forfeiture of motorcycles. So, under what

          6  circumstances is a motorcycle forfeited now? And why

          7  wouldn't this bill be a help to you, just due to the

          8  fact that it increases the penalties for this type

          9  of behavior, and for the possession of these pipes?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         11  I think seizure of a motorcycle is an extremely

         12  labor-intensive process, and I don't know that we

         13  would seize and forfeit motorcycles for this

         14  purpose, even given the new law. I note that the law

         15  allows for the forfeiture upon a second incident.

         16  So, that would even be less likely to be used.

         17                 Currently, the Police Department is

         18  able to seize motorcycles with equipment violations

         19  based on safety issues and then return them to the

         20  owner. But I think that passing a law like this

         21  enhancing potentially the ability to seize and

         22  forfeit, I know that's the intent, but if we were

         23  going to do that, we do have the tools to do it now.

         24                 I think part of the problem is, it's

         25  a resource issue. The seizure of --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, you have

          3  the tools to do it now, but only for safety reasons

          4  and not for noise reasons. And we think --

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

          6  no, if I can interrupt?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, sure.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: A

          9  noise violation is a misdemeanor and that gives us

         10  the ability to seize and forfeit because it's a

         11  proceed or instrumentality of crime. A noise

         12  violation, a Noise Code violation is a misdemeanor

         13  and it is therefore a predicate for forfeiture of

         14  property that we seize as an instrumentality of

         15  crime.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, tell me

         17  then how many Noise Code violations have been given

         18  out to motorcycles for illegal pipes or excessive

         19  noise coming from the pipes and how many of these

         20  motorcycles have been seized based on that?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         22  don't have it broken out by motorcycles. We cover

         23  all motor vehicles. For a noisy muffler, we issued

         24  435 summonses in 2005 and so far 300 summonses in

         25  2006 for the VTL sections of noisy muffler, the
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          2  equipment violation.

          3                 For noise summonses, again,

          4  unfortunately I don't have it broken out regarding

          5  category, we've issued 17,623 C summonses in 2005

          6  and 409 ECB summonses.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Wait, wait,

          8  wait. Seventeen-thousand noise in general or motor

          9  vehicle noise?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No.

         11  Noise summonses for all motor vehicles.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So it has to be

         13  motor vehicle noises.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: For

         15  motor vehicle noise. I'm sorry. But it's not -- oh,

         16  you know what? Let me make sure of that, because I

         17  thought -- no, all noise summonses, I'm sorry. It's

         18  not just for motor vehicles.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, that's not

         20  that helpful.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We

         22  didn't have it broken out any further.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We would

         24  actually like, though, and it would be very

         25  important for us, because the first figure was how
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          2  many muffler violations?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

          4  Four-hundred and thirty-five.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If we don't know

          6  that three of those were motorcycles, it's not

          7  helpful to us. So, can you help us get that

          8  information?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         10  Unfortunately we don't break it out that way. It

         11  would be a hand count, so that's not practical for

         12  us to be able to do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: All right.

         14                 So, you've mentioned that you don't

         15  know that you would forfeit motorcycles for this. I

         16  would have to respectfully disagree with that and

         17  hope that you would, because as Council Member

         18  Gerson said, this is a huge, huge problem in the

         19  City. It's probably in my district one of the top

         20  reasons I get complaints in my office, motorcycle

         21  noise. I happen to have Astoria Park in my

         22  neighborhood, motorcycles come from all over the

         23  City to go to Shore Boulevard and drive up and down

         24  Shore Boulevard and remain parked there all day

         25  long, and the homes around Astoria Park are really
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          2  affected by this.

          3                 You stated in your testimony "...

          4  motorcycles in motion are usually gone before the

          5  enforcement action is taken and that remains is the

          6  memory of the ear-splitting sound," yes, the memory

          7  and the barking dogs and the car alarms and the

          8  crying babies and all of the rest of it comes with

          9  these outrageously abusive motorcycle exhausts. So,

         10  you should absolutely be taking these motorcycles

         11  every chance you get. We need to send the message

         12  out here that this is completely unacceptable.

         13                 I hope you'll be doing more of that

         14  when the new Noise Code comes into effect, but,

         15  again, we're trying to help here. And I know you

         16  said through your testimony you don't oppose

         17  anything we're doing as being bad, just that it's

         18  duplicative, and that you believe you already have

         19  the right to do most of it.

         20                 Let's see, I'm going through your

         21  testimony here, you mention that the VTL says -- is

         22  out of date, basically, because all motorcycle

         23  mufflers are now designed to have the baffles

         24  removed.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: That
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          2  are removable or interchangeable, and that's one

          3  section, one subdivision.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Should we then

          5  be introducing a resolution to call on Albany to

          6  update their laws, or write an administrative code

          7  provision that would make it easier for you to

          8  enforce these laws?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         10  I believe that the other subdivisions of the VTL are

         11  still valid, in other words they cover the

         12  situations that you're looking towards, that one

         13  particular design violation that we believe is

         14  out-of-date, but the actual alteration or

         15  modification of a muffler is still an equipment

         16  violation, it's just that one subdivision, which

         17  happens to be the language that is copied into the

         18  bill, is, we believe, out of date.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, it's not the

         20  fact that that law is out of date in Albany, it's

         21  the fact that we've copied that into our bill.

         22                 You don't suggest any legislative

         23  changes in Albany or at a City level to rectify

         24  that?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I
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          2  don't believe that is necessary, no. Because the

          3  baseline is the alteration of a muffler and that's a

          4  separate and clear equipment violation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. How about

          6  straight pipe? Do you have a separate category for,

          7  rather than noise violations, but straight pipe

          8  violations, or is that encompassed under the noise

          9  violations?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I'm

         11  sorry? Well, the straight pipe is a motor vehicle

         12  equipment violation. The VTL sections deal with

         13  that. The Noise Code violations are both in the VTL,

         14  you know, which gives decibel levels, and an

         15  Administrative Code Noise Code, which is both

         16  unreasonable noise and decibel levels.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So then the

         18  question I'm asking is straight pipe violations, how

         19  many of those have you given out?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: The

         21  VTL equipment violation?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Correct.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: That's

         24  what I gave you before, 435 summonses in 2005 and

         25  300 summonses in 2006 so far.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, the

          3  equipment summonses are the muffler summonses you

          4  mentioned before?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

          6  What I called the "noisy muffler." It's the

          7  equipment violation. It's not a noise violation,

          8  that's the VTL equipment violation, and those were

          9  moving violations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, and there

         11  is no way for you to get that breakdown regarding

         12  motorcycle mufflers?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         14  Unfortunately, no.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         16                 The other thing we're trying to do

         17  here is allow you to strengthen your case when you

         18  give a violation for a stationary motorcycle. The

         19  law right now says that you have to -- it has to be

         20  in use or in operation in a public street. So, if

         21  you ticket a motorcycle that is parked for a illegal

         22  muffler, can't they conceivably come into court and

         23  say that that motorcycle is not in use or operation?

         24  Wouldn't that be a defense to that violation that

         25  you've issued?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          3  don't believe so. I think because it's installed on

          4  the muffler, they installed it, I don't know that

          5  the word install means that garage mechanic who

          6  installed it. They have installed it on the

          7  motorcycle so I don't believe that the PVB would

          8  dismiss it on that basis, but I don't know for sure.

          9  It might vary with the judge.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, the rule

         11  is, as you said, install, not installed. So, in my

         12  eyes, as a former prosecutor and defense attorney,

         13  it would be up to the judge as to how they rule

         14  regarding install, as to how they rule regarding in

         15  use, and would you have any information as to how

         16  these have been ruled upon in the past?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         18  don't know. I'm sorry.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay.

         20                 But our law, though, to make it a

         21  crime just to have it parked, would take those

         22  potential defenses away, correct?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         24  I think part of the problem is that if you're making

         25  it a misdemeanor, it needs to be personally served
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          2  on the violator in order to have effect, and we

          3  can't have a misdemeanor criminal penalty for, in

          4  essence, a parking violation, because the person is

          5  not there to receive the summons. It needs to be

          6  personally served. So, I'm not sure how that would

          7  work.

          8                 I assumed it to be a parking ticket,

          9  but when you want it to be a misdemeanor, that is

         10  more complicated.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's something

         12  I'll need to check with the bill's sponsor.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: The

         14  416 only has civil penalties. It's not a misdemeanor

         15  to park it, right? You know, I just want to be

         16  clear.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's unclear

         18  to me also. I believe in the civil penalties.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: The

         20  way we read the bill only to a team establishes a

         21  misdemeanor. 416 only carries civil penalties, which

         22  would be the service of an ECB summons. But, again,

         23  that requires personal service. So, it's one of the

         24  drafting issues that we were going to raise.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, if the
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          2  motorcycle operator was there with the motorcycle,

          3  you would be able to do it.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

          5  But I think the point is you would want to not have

          6  to do that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, I

          8  think the testimony on this point is correct,

          9  though. Again, this is the first hearing, and it may

         10  be coming up with a very good technical amendment.

         11                 The 416 bill dealing with the parked

         12  motorcycles is limited at this point to civil

         13  penalties, but including that of forfeiture. The

         14  companion bill does, which covers the situations

         15  where the person is present, even if the motorcycle

         16  is not in motion, but does impose a misdemeanor

         17  violation. Though, and I'll pursue this as we go

         18  forward, it might not be a bad idea to add a

         19  misdemeanor violation to 416 as well, and I have

         20  some thoughts as to how we can get around the need

         21  for personal service. But Mr. Chair, let me turn the

         22  mic back to you. But you don't disagree with my

         23  description of the bill's operation at this point?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: That's

         25  right. And 218 is a misdemeanor and the person would
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          2  be present at that point, yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GERSON: Correct.

          4                 And that's why I think we structured

          5  the bills in the way we did. But I would just add

          6  that forfeiture provisions, probably in the minds of

          7  many of the motorcycle operators who are present,

          8  probably is a lot greater penalty and deterrent than

          9  a few nights in jail or a heavier fine, knowing how

         10  the relationship between many of these operators and

         11  the motorcycles they operate. So, as a practical

         12  matter, I think that may be a stronger deterrent in

         13  penalty. But thank you.

         14                 Let me turn the mic back to you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Absolutely. When

         16  we have our meeting in the future, we're going to

         17  discuss not only ways to make these bills better,

         18  but increased penalties. Because even if we have to

         19  keep the laws the way they are, through

         20  administrative code we might be able to increase the

         21  forfeiture of these vehicles somehow, or the

         22  penalties that are imposed. Because, obviously what

         23  is happening right now is just not sufficient, not

         24  for my neighborhood and not for many of the other

         25  neighborhoods. You'll hear from some neighborhood
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          2  people, and obviously you can't chase every

          3  motorcycle that commits this violation. That would

          4  give rise to more problems than exist right now. So,

          5  we're trying to give you every tool possible to take

          6  the squeal out of the hogs, as I said before.

          7                 This is a matter that is going to

          8  take much more cooperation between, and effort

          9  between both you and us, and that is something that

         10  is going to happen in the future. Are there any

         11  others who had questions, Council members, from this

         12  panel?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just a

         14  follow-up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm going to go

         16  to a quick follow-up to Alan Gerson again.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just, thank

         18  you, Mr. Chair. Just a couple of items of follow-up.

         19                 Do you agree that it would be helpful

         20  to increase the penalty for the violations involved

         21  -- for violations for using straight pipes or

         22  illegal noisy engines? Could we increase the current

         23  penalties?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         25  think that increasing penalties is certainly a fine
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          2  idea. I don't know whether or not, how that would

          3  happen, because the penalties for the equipment

          4  violations are set by the Traffic Violations Bureau

          5  at this point, so it depends on how you would want

          6  to structure it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, but in

          8  general I think you answered the question, that if

          9  we could figure out the legislative way of doing it,

         10  increasing penalties could only help, right?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         12  agree.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You mentioned

         14  that -- and by the way, that is one of the

         15  objectives of these bills. You mentioned that the

         16  impoundment of motorcycles would be a

         17  labor-intensive operation, more labor intensive, or

         18  less labor intensive than the operation Silent Night

         19  checkpoints you set up from time to time?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         21  I think it's the same issue, if we're taking a

         22  motorcycle, we need a flatbed truck. We need ways to

         23  transport the motorcycles.  That's very labor

         24  intensive, so it's more likely to be able to do that

         25  on a planned basis, a planned operation, than for a
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          2  police officer coming upon a violation and not

          3  having at that point the wherewithal or the time to

          4  seize the motorcycle, whether it's for seizure or

          5  for possible forfeiture later on.

          6                 So, again, it's very resource intense

          7  and it's also a question of priorities, does that

          8  police officer or that set of police officers have

          9  the ability and the time at that moment to take that

         10  action as opposed to doing something else that they

         11  need to do.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think our

         13  suggestion is that you currently, from time to time,

         14  establish these checkpoints, which we have found

         15  have only fleeting effectiveness, and whereas an

         16  operation which targets areas, which obviously would

         17  require advanced planning, as you pointed out, but

         18  targets problematic areas and for repeat offenders

         19  does involve the removal of the motorcycle, might

         20  provide a greater, more permanent deterrent. And my

         21  understanding is that the impoundment operation

         22  would be no more labor intensive but yet more

         23  effective than your current checkpoint operations.

         24  So my question was, am I correct in assuming that

         25  the two are roughly, involve roughly the same level
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          2  of personnel, or impoundment might even involve less

          3  personnel, because for checkpoints you need DOT

          4  personnel present, you need traffic control people

          5  present, you need a whole bunch in addition to

          6  police officers.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          8  think it varies with the situation.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It

         11  always depends on what the Precinct Commander

         12  determines is the need at that time, and if they

         13  plan an operation, they will get the resources

         14  available there. It may not be as broad a focus as

         15  what you're describing in the checkpoint situation,

         16  but for example, if there is a need, we may ask

         17  other personnel, for example, DMV inspectors, to

         18  come assist us.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And typically

         20  you do.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         22  Sometimes, yes. But sometimes, again, if we want to

         23  deal with a situation immediately and it's 3:00 in

         24  the morning, the Precinct personnel will go and

         25  handle it themselves. They will not have the
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          2  opportunity to have the DMV inspector come along.

          3  They might not be able to get a tow truck.

          4                 So, again, it's very resource

          5  intense, and it's always about the situation at

          6  hand.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: That's true

          8  with the current Silent Night or check points, is it

          9  not?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         11  believe Silent Night is a planned operation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Correct.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

         14  What I'm saying is that --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm just

         16  saying the two would be equivalent.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It can

         18  be either way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Right. I agree

         20  with you on that.

         21                 Okay, Mr. Chair, I think we've heard

         22  testimony that it would be helpful to increase

         23  penalties, so certainly we should proceed with those

         24  aspects of these bills in the appropriate

         25  legislative fashion, and I think I'm glad to see
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          2  that we're in agreement at least on that point, and

          3  I hope we will follow-up with the meeting involving

          4  the experts.

          5                 Mr. Chair, David Mangeim has

          6  testified previously where he has spelled out the

          7  ways of identifying the straight pipes and the

          8  tampered engines, and even though he did not do it

          9  in this particular writing, and he has also advised

         10  our local precincts on how to do that, and that has

         11  been applied with I think a degree of success. So,

         12  again, I think it would be helpful to have him, our

         13  in-house experts, other experts sit down with NYPD

         14  experts and see if they could work out a protocol,

         15  which I am convinced could work.

         16                 In terms of the personal service,

         17  again, for the issuance of violations on the parked

         18  motorcycles and again identification to the license

         19  point of impoundment and confiscation of repeaters,

         20  personal service would not be necessary. But from

         21  your testimony, where you say it's virtually

         22  impossible or unwise to chase moving motorcycles, an

         23  officer who is walking a beat and, you know,

         24  patrolling the same area, frequently has the

         25  opportunity to see the motorcycles leave the club or
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          2  leave the bar and get back on the motorcycle before

          3  they take off, and I would suggest it's a lot easier

          4  than to chase motorcycles once they're moving, and

          5  indeed in many situations it's really not that

          6  problematic to make personal service, because we

          7  know and everyone in the community knows and

          8  certainly the beat officers know that the motorcycle

          9  drivers are going to return to their motorcycles and

         10  probably have a rough idea as to when they'll do

         11  that. So, you know, that would facilitate, you know,

         12  given the direction and given the training and the

         13  instruction, seems to me that personal service could

         14  in fact be accomplished in that way.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         16  I'm not sure that I would commit police officers to

         17  standing and waiting for the person to return.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And I wasn't

         19  suggesting that.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: But I

         21  think that the fact that we do issue summonses on

         22  these violations indicates that we do sometimes see

         23  the owner of the motorcycle get on the motorcycle,

         24  get off the motorcycle and we effect personal

         25  service.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, those

          3  situations, if we had a misdemeanor, or we had a

          4  regime which required personal service, at least in

          5  those situations you just described, personal

          6  service would be possible?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

          9                 All right. Thank you very much, Mr.

         10  Chair. Thank you. And I look forward to a very quick

         11  follow-up.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I realize that

         15  you do, but even with the number 400 that you gave,

         16  which includes cars, over a year period I'm

         17  guessing, we're asking that you do some more. As I

         18  said before, once these illegal pipes go by, the

         19  noise may be a memory, but the barking dogs, the

         20  crying kids and the wailing car alarms are not, and

         21  we want to work with you to figure out what we can

         22  do as a legislature to help you and make the laws as

         23  tough as they can be, and what you can do

         24  additionally as an enforcement agency to get this

         25  scourge off the streets.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Excuse me, Mr.

          3  Chair. In addition to the barking dogs, and the car

          4  alarms, what remains also is the emotional and

          5  physical impact on the person of being bombarded

          6  with this excessive noise night after night after

          7  night every spring and every summer.

          8                 I mean, I really wish we would once

          9  and for all take this as seriously as we would as a

         10  continual physical assault, because you'll hear

         11  testimony from people that is what this amounts to.

         12  And if you can come up with a better idea to solve

         13  the problem, I'm all ears, but we need to do

         14  something more than what we've done in the past.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

         16  I'm not going to say anything else because it might

         17  be followed up upon, so just thank you all for your

         18  testimony, at least Commissioner Petito, for your

         19  testimony today. And we look forward to working with

         20  you as a body to combat this problem.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Thank

         22  you.

         23                 I hope that some of you will stay

         24  around for some of our community representatives who

         25  are going to testify. So, while you're leaving, I'm
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          2  going to call in Mr. Rick Panson and Honi Klein, one

          3  from the Village Alliance and one from Community

          4  Board 2, to come up together.

          5                 I would like to also say that the

          6  testimony that was submitted from the New York

          7  Motorcycle Coalition does say that they fully

          8  support the passage and implementation of Alan

          9  Gerson's measures and it will be entered into the

         10  record.

         11                 Welcome. Please identify yourself for

         12  the record and then you can begin.

         13                 MS. KLEIN: Yes, my name is Honi

         14  Klein, and I'm the Executive Director of the Village

         15  Alliance Business Improvement District.

         16                 You're getting a black and white copy

         17  of something that I'm going to show you in color,

         18  which I'm always delighted to come before anyone who

         19  is addressing any group, any committee that

         20  addresses motorcycles.

         21                 One of your members, Council Member

         22  Alan Gerson, has certainly, since the Village

         23  Alliance has been in business as a Business

         24  Improvement District, has always been trying to do

         25  something.
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          2                 I have to say that what you're

          3  looking at is 2:00 in the afternoon starting in

          4  April. We do not have ten, 20, 30 motorcycles on

          5  West Eight Street between Fifth and Sixth Avenues,

          6  we have 40, 50, 60, 70. They come all day and all

          7  night. It goes up to 1:00 a.m.

          8                 I would say that it's sort of become

          9  a popular space, not only because of Grace Papaya,

         10  it's just sitting there and watching the pedestrians

         11  go by.

         12                 Why is this having the most negative

         13  impact on our 82 stores on that one block alone is

         14  that they take up viable parking spaces. I mean, I

         15  am for the straight pipe legislation, the wheelies,

         16  et cetera, but this transcends everything that

         17  you've been talking about because as we know, the

         18  wheelies and everything where you're just on one

         19  bill now comes under the reckless driving

         20  legislation, which having talked to the 6th Precinct

         21  people in our district, that they tried to do that.

         22                 About the straight pipes and you

         23  heard it, it has been, it comes under unreasonable

         24  noise law. We have been fighting this for the ten,

         25  11 years that the Village Alliance has been in
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          2  existence. In June of 2004, Community Board 2 passed

          3  a resolution that did not go any place that talked

          4  about the motorcycle situation and it urged the NYPD

          5  and the DOT, the Community Assistance Unit, and the

          6  Mayor's Office, to take a devise a plan to reduce

          7  motor traffic on a motorcycle and provide much

          8  needed relief to the small businesses. This is who

          9  is being hurt, the small businesses, number one. We

         10  did a parking study, and as everybody came in a

         11  vehicle to park their car, we said would you come

         12  here if you couldn't have your car, and I have to

         13  say that I was surprised, it was 50/50, because many

         14  of you, if you are familiar with the village, we

         15  have superb public transportation, 50 percent said,

         16  no, they wouldn't come, even though I have parking

         17  lots on the street.

         18                 So, (a) we're hurting business, and

         19  while it is a residential district with a commercial

         20  overlay, we are talking about 800 to 1,000 residents

         21  that live on this block and they have been suffering

         22  with this.

         23                 In July of '05, the Community Board

         24  took another resolution and they were asking for no

         25  standing. No standing, where is that? No standing
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          2  and no stopping 11:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. No standing,

          3  no stopping, from 11:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. I cannot

          4  not imagine why this was not enforced. We currently

          5  have no parking on that block, on West Eighth Street

          6  from Fifth to Sixth from 11:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m.

          7  that was something that was put forward around 15

          8  years ago, and I don't see why we can't have no

          9  standing, no stopping.

         10                 Now, while I do support anything in

         11  any legislation that moves anything forward to

         12  reduce the noise and the wheelies we have all

         13  weekend long. By the time they get up on one wheel,

         14  they do the wheelie, they're ay Broadway. The police

         15  aren't running after them. But what I would like to

         16  say, and I think that our Council Member and friend

         17  of the Village Alliance has heard this from me many,

         18  many times, I really believe that the only answer

         19  where you are talking about over 50 bikes day in and

         20  day out in the warm weather, to address that problem

         21  is to create a restricted street for those that have

         22  excessive motorbikes. We now have it for trucks,

         23  that this is not a truck route, and despite the fact

         24  that I have been informed by some people in the

         25  government that that would be considered bias and
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          2  prejudicial because as you heard from the police

          3  people today, that they don't break out vehicle

          4  noise or muffler issues from motorcycles, because

          5  motorcycles are considered in the same category as

          6  cars, which to me, until we break that out, we just

          7  cannot further our monitoring and legislation of the

          8  issue. They are not cars, they are motorcycles, and

          9  I really believe that the bottom line is that we

         10  have to work diligently in that direction to have

         11  restricted areas for motorbikes. You cannot have

         12  motorbikes in that number, and I have to say that we

         13  have several large co-ops on each corner there, and

         14  at one of them, one Fifth Avenue, the manager is a

         15  biker. He's a biker, and on Monday morning I say to

         16  him, "John, how was the weekend?" He said he has a

         17  young family, he said they were out there til 1:00,

         18  2:00 a.m. And with all due respect to the NYPD, and

         19  we do work with them, and we do work with the paid

         20  detail of the NYPD, is that we all know this is a

         21  very, very low priority, and therefore, it just goes

         22  on and on and on. So, I would urge you, I have

         23  really nothing more specific to say about these

         24  intros, I think that the penalties being greater are

         25  very good, but until we are able to, one, separate
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          2  motorbikes from the category of cars and put them

          3  all together as vehicles, and until we can address

          4  that where there is exigent circumstances, where you

          5  have over 50 bikes, and this is just early

          6  afternoon, 2:00, as you can see, I think that from

          7  our perspective, in terms of hurting business,

          8  hurting the small business owner, which we have

          9  heard particularly this Administration address, and

         10  as we go forward, there are more and more small

         11  businesses because unless you're in the outer

         12  boroughs where they still have land to develop, we

         13  don't have the big box stores, they're small stores.

         14                 So, basically I wanted to be brief,

         15  and I think that I did cover my points that I wanted

         16  to make.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Well, we

         18  thank you for coming down today, and I just want you

         19  to know that I fully understand your pain. This

         20  amount of motorcycles is low for Astoria Park on a

         21  summer day, it will sometimes be twice this many.

         22  Now I know it's not as bad because it's a park, and

         23  it's not a residential street like this --

         24                 MS. KLEIN: Yes, there are residents

         25  living above all --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: On this street,

          3  yes. My park does not have residents there, but to

          4  get to and from Astoria Park has to go through the

          5  entire neighborhood with their illegal pipes.

          6                 MS. KLEIN: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, my district

          8  completely understands the pain of yours. And I'd

          9  also like to, speaking of pain, introduce Jim

         10  Gennaro, no apparent connection there at all, I

         11  hope. But thank you for joining us. And you may

         12  begin, sir.

         13                 MR. PANSON: Hi. My name is Rick

         14  Panson. I'm the Chair of the Environment Committee

         15  of Community Board 2, and it was my Committee that

         16  passed the resolution back in 2004, which was

         17  unanimously adopted by the full Board of Community

         18  Board 2, and I stand here side-by-side with my

         19  colleague letting you know that the noise is

         20  deafening. The noise is so deafening that we can't

         21  even -- it's ear shattering, and it is painful.

         22                 Now, I have a degree in environmental

         23  science, and I will let you know that I have ridden

         24  a motorcycle since I was 11 years old. I know what

         25  it is to take the baffles out of a pipe. I know how
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          2  easy it is to stick a stick up the pipe and not do

          3  damage to the muffler, whether it's a nightstick or

          4  a stick off a tree. This is so simple it's

          5  ridiculous. To hear the rhetoric of these public

          6  servants who were up here before me just makes me

          7  realize that they have no stomach for this because

          8  the noise is not affecting them. There are a lot of

          9  people that this noise is affecting, and in the

         10  Village, where I live, this Eighth Street

         11  phenomenon, I'm a six foot one guy, I don't scare

         12  for very much at all. Ask anybody how intimidating I

         13  am. These guys intimidate me. You can imagine what

         14  it's like when you're sitting in your hotel room at

         15  the Washington Square Hotel and you want a view of

         16  the park because it's a beautiful hotel. But you

         17  can't, because you can't sleep. You have to take an

         18  interior room, and you've got a big business like

         19  that that's not even on Eighth Street that's

         20  adversely affected because it resonates so much.

         21                 There is not enough tooth in the

         22  current laws. I applaud the laws that have been

         23  passed. I applaud the hard work that's been done and

         24  I'm a motorcycle guy, I would never ride a

         25  motorcycle like I did when I was an irresponsible
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          2  youth. The people who are riding these motorcycles

          3  know what they're doing, these Harley Davidsons with

          4  straight pipes, or these high-performance Suzukis

          5  and Yamahas that make all this screeching noise,

          6  they do it for attention, and in order to get a

          7  little bit more performance out of their vehicles.

          8  But when the motorcycles come from the manufacturer,

          9  they are equipped with tuned beautiful exhaust

         10  systems that then they go out and spend hundreds of

         11  dollars of to make it loud and then they wear

         12  earphones. They wear ear plugs and the noise is

         13  behind them as they're racing at 60 and 80 and 90

         14  miles an hour. I've literally seen them at speeds in

         15  excess of 70 miles an hour between Eighth Street and

         16  University Place or Eighth Street and Fifth Avenue,

         17  between Sixth, Fifth and Sixth. Motorcycles can go

         18  from zero to 60 in 3.7 seconds. It doesn't take much

         19  to do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Let me interrupt

         21  a second. Because there is some debate as to whether

         22  these type pipes actually add to the performance.

         23  You say they do?

         24                 MR. PANSON: They add minor amounts to

         25  performance, only because there is no back pressure.
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          2  The pressure of an engine, any engine, whether it's

          3  a Corvette or a motorcycle, the baffling doesn't

          4  allow the exhaust gases to come out as much so you

          5  lose a little bit of performance when you have

          6  baffling or mufflers, but the reality is when you

          7  get a stocked motorcycle, they have tuned those

          8  exhaust systems to be so ideally perfect as to get

          9  maximum performance out and not compromise the

         10  safety of the earth-shattering noise.

         11                 Now, what is it going to take,

         12  somebody's eardrums to be absolutely split open, and

         13  then you can still never catch the motorcyclist?

         14                 I applaud the efforts here and I

         15  think that we really need to put more tooth into

         16  this law, and I am a motorcycle fan. I mean, I saw

         17  this guy sitting here, he obviously rides a

         18  motorcycle, he strikes me as a Harley Davidson kind

         19  of guy, you know, it's okay. Riding in groups of

         20  motorcycles is not something that I find to be

         21  contemptable, but how are you affecting the

         22  communities you're riding through?

         23                 When I was a kid I rode in rallies of

         24  motorcycles very peacefully. We didn't really make

         25  that kind of disruption but that's a very different

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  situation than when you see what's going on today

          3  with these groups and they don't give a dang about

          4  anybody. They just care about showing off, making

          5  tremendous noise behind the, in their wake, and it's

          6  all fun and games for them. But they're really,

          7  really hurting, and on a level of health and

          8  wellness, we're talking about public safety. I'm a

          9  guy who studies health and wellness now today, and

         10  the noise level in New York City is deplorable. It's

         11  completely out of control. And I used to own

         12  nightclubs, so I understand it only takes one or two

         13  nightclubs to make it bad for a whole industry, but

         14  in 20 years of owning a nightclub on the corner of

         15  Christopher and Seventh Avenue, I got one noise

         16  violation on Gay Pride Sunday for having outdoor

         17  speakers you could hear for three blocks away. I

         18  took the violation. You don't have to make noise in

         19  order to be on a motorcycle. You don't have to

         20  disrupt everybody. My suggestion is that if police

         21  had locks, like they had these locks that go on cars

         22  that can padlock the front tire or back tire of a

         23  motorcycle, and they have to dial 9-1-1, now you can

         24  get the motorcycle rider, you get his license and

         25  you make him drive it right to the precinct where he
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          2  can drop off the motorcycle so it's now confiscated,

          3  and he can't go anywhere without taking that lock

          4  off his motorcycle. And what have you got? They're

          5  going to call 9-1-1, the Precinct will send an

          6  officer by, you confiscate his motorcycle, and make

          7  him pay his price.

          8                 I think there is another problem with

          9  motorcycles, too, that I've observed over and over

         10  again, and that's the same thing where they park

         11  their motorcycles on the sidewalks, they take velcro

         12  and they are attaching their license plates with

         13  velcro so they cannot receive a summons for parking

         14  on sidewalks. Vespots, motorcycles and other things.

         15  I suggest the same solution, you padlock that

         16  motorcycle's front wheel or back wheel with either a

         17  chain lock or a cable lock that clearly identifies

         18  it as an NYPD summons, and that owner cannot move

         19  that vehicle until they call NYPD and take their

         20  summons, because you can't summons a vespot or a

         21  motorcycle on a sidewalk if there is no license

         22  plate to actually give it a summons.

         23                 It's a simple piece of legislation

         24  perhaps you can add in that would say if there is no

         25  license plate we confiscate the vehicle until we can
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          2  give the guy a summons.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're already

          4  working on it.

          5                 MR. PANSON: I've said enough I think,

          6  unless you want me to scream at the top of my lungs

          7  to show you how earth shattering noise can be.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How about we

          9  just tell people you did that, and you don't have to

         10  actually do it.

         11                 No, thank you. It's been very

         12  enlightening listening to both of you. The padlock

         13  idea, we're already crafting a letter to the police,

         14  whether that's possible, and what do they need in

         15  legislation for us to pass for them to do that, and

         16  why they aren't doing it. So, sounds like a great

         17  idea.

         18                 Alan, do you have any questions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I don't want

         20  to disappoint you by saying no, Mr. Chair.

         21                 So, first of all, let me thank both

         22  Ms. Klein and Mr. Panson for not only being here but

         23  for their tireless and dedicated work on behalf of

         24  our community and our City.

         25                 Let me, Mr. Chair, for the record,
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          2  verify and vouch for the substance of Mr. Panson's

          3  testimony in its entirely, but especially when he

          4  said that he is not easily intimidated, and usually

          5  he is the one intimidating others, but when he does

          6  that, it's usually intimidating others for a good

          7  purpose, or virtually always. So, we appreciate

          8  that.

          9                 I think, Mr. Chair, both these

         10  witnesses came up with some very good practical

         11  suggestions. Ms. Klein's point about mandating

         12  statistics and record keeping which distinguish

         13  motorcycles from other motor vehicles, and putting

         14  in place the authority to give the police the tool

         15  to close particular streets to motorcycle traffic

         16  upon ascertainment of need. I think those are two

         17  very good specific suggestions that I urge we follow

         18  up on.

         19                 I will just digress, Mr. Yu, before

         20  you sign down, we need you to fill out a witness

         21  form so we could get to you following these panels.

         22                 And I think the idea that Mr. Panson

         23  put forward about, you know, a lock in place and

         24  requiring the owner to call in to have it removed,

         25  you know, legally that could be a means to preserve
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          2  potential evidence of a violation. I would like to

          3  request that we follow-up on that. So, I thank you

          4  for those suggestions.

          5                 Mr. Chair, let me just make one point

          6  and then I have one question. The point is, I can

          7  assure you that come the second hearing there will

          8  be standing room only, even if we have the hearing

          9  in the Chambers, because of the change of dates for

         10  this hearing and the relative last-minute notice

         11  during the holiday season we were not able to

         12  disseminate the information about this hearing as

         13  widely as we normally would throughout the

         14  community. But I assure you that when we do that,

         15  these witnesses will be joined by huge turnout

         16  because the meetings, the community meetings I have

         17  attended dealing with this issue have been among the

         18  most well-attended meetings.

         19                 So, let me ask you, Mr. Panson, as

         20  Chair of the Community Board, the Environment

         21  Committee, is it true that motorcycle noise

         22  complaints rank among the greatest number of

         23  complaints, the top tier of number of complaints

         24  received by the Board?

         25                 MR. PANSON: Absolutely. And I just
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          2  want to add that when you take the vehicle, they're

          3  going to get the vehicle back, but when you

          4  inconvenience them by confiscating a vehicle that

          5  has impact, when you don't, when it's just a

          6  summons, a lot of these kids don't care.

          7                 And, you know, these kind of noise

          8  complaints are coming all the time. It is an

          9  absolutely horrible situation in my community, but

         10  especially along that Eighth Street strip. I live on

         11  Broadway, we've got the noise from these big boom

         12  boxes, too. We really have to work together. It is a

         13  real opportunity for us to help our citizens enjoy

         14  what we can of New York City by continuing this

         15  concerted effort on noise as a real crime.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: All right, the

         17  Council needs this room, so I've got another witness

         18  to go who is going to get 30 seconds, Mr. Yu,

         19  because I normally don't let people testify who

         20  haven't put their card up earlier, so you're going

         21  to have 30 seconds. Let me just ask my Council

         22  members to say something very brief, and if it's

         23  going to require an answer it's got to be a few

         24  seconds.

         25                 MR. KLEIN: Thirty seconds, Mr. Chair.
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          2  Here I go. I'd just like to comment on the

          3  checkpoints that Alan mentioned and so did the

          4  police.

          5                 On Eighth Street, I have gone through

          6  summers where every single weekend they put up a

          7  road blockade at Sixth Avenue and Eighth Street. You

          8  know who it hurts? It doesn't touch the people on

          9  motorcycles, they are stopping to validate current

         10  license, et cetera, on the cars, and I don't know

         11  how many of the people who come to shop on Eighth

         12  Street or what have you, have some kind of

         13  violation. It doubly enforces the hurt on

         14  businesses. I've had meeting after meeting with the

         15  police, they say, Honi, the residents call and

         16  complain and the business complaints just go out the

         17  window.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 MS. KLEIN: So, I would like you to

         21  consider these road blocks. They're not helping

         22  anyone.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Hold on one

         24  second, I think Council Member Gennaro might have a

         25  quick questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure. I just

          3  want to say for the record that I'm happy to go on

          4  as a sponsor for both of these measures, and with

          5  regard to your comments or regarding boom boxes,

          6  that's something that is going to be covered under

          7  the noise bill we passed at the end of last year.

          8  The rules are still being developed pursuant to

          9  that.

         10                 The news Noise Bill last year didn't

         11  touch so much as it should have, so I'm happy to

         12  support these two measures. And thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I was just going

         15  to say that Councilman Gennaro is the Chair of our

         16  Environmental Committee that these bills all went

         17  through, so it's through his hard efforts that these

         18  things happened, and he's an expert on this. And I'm

         19  sure there's a lot more to say but isn't in lieu of

         20  the fact that we're being thrown out.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And Councilman

         22  Gennaro's support of this bill is extraordinarily

         23  significant, and thank you very much for your

         24  leadership on making our environment better.

         25                 Mr. Panson, this could be yes or no.
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          2  I think from your experience as a motorcyclist,

          3  you're awareness, can the police be trained to spot

          4  in most cases the straight pipes or tampered

          5  engines?

          6                 MR. PANSON: Yes, I believe so.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          8  much, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, both.

         10                 Mr. Yu, 30 seconds and then we need

         11  to go. So, come on up and make your point. Thank

         12  you, Mr. Yu. Identify yourself and let us know why

         13  you're here.

         14                 MR. YU: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

         15  and honorable Council members. My name is Justin Yu.

         16  J-u-s-t-i-n  Y-u. I'm a Vice President of Confucius

         17  Plaza Housing Complex, and the other capacity I have

         18  is President of the Chinese Chamber of Commerce of

         19  New York.

         20                 I'm here today in support of the

         21  proposed exhibitionist behavior on motorcycle bill.

         22  The basis of my support are two-fold: First, the

         23  excessive noise. The Confucius Plaza are two

         24  buildings on Bowery and Canal, overlooking the

         25  Manhattan Bridge. One of the building is 44 floors
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          2  high-rise, next to the bridge. My and the other

          3  residents share the experience, is constantly being

          4  waken up in the dead of night to the horrifying

          5  warring sound of individuals on motorcycles,

          6  speeding up and down on the bridge.

          7                 I believe that this kind of a quality

          8  of life intrusion affect sleep and the life of

          9  countless other New Yorkers in our communities. Not

         10  only the terrifying sound emitted from these

         11  motorcycles is very disturbing.

         12                 The second base for my support of

         13  this bill is the tremendous public safety concerns.

         14  Exhibitionist behaviors on motorcycles in our

         15  highways and road create extremely dangerous

         16  situation for both motorist and the pedestrians. I

         17  sincerely hope by passing this bill with enforcement

         18  will reduce exhibitionist behavior of motorcycle

         19  riders, give us quieter and safer city to live in.

         20                 Thank you for giving me this

         21  opportunity to share with my experience with you and

         22  ask you all to support this bill to improve quality

         23  of life of our City residents. Happy holidays to you

         24  all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Yu. Thank you for coming down. We do this for a

          3  living, but it's impressive when people come, make

          4  time out of their day to come down here to testify.

          5  Thank you for your support, we know what you do for

          6  the community every day. And I wish we had time to

          7  ask you a lot of questions, but we don't, but I'm

          8  going to give Councilman Gerson a very brief second

          9  here. Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And, again,

         11  thank you for all your great work for our community.

         12  One point is very important. Can the motorcycle

         13  noise be heard from within apartments even at upper

         14  floors?

         15                 MR. YU: Our apartments, almost 600

         16  units, I think half of the people would be waked up

         17  by the motorcycle sound. Such a huge noise,

         18  especially in the summertime, when we open our

         19  windows. You just cannot sleep because of

         20  motorcyclists.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And this

         22  problem has now been going on for a few years, has

         23  it not?

         24                 MR. YU: For 20 years.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: For 20 years.
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          2                 MR. YU: I think it's long enough.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And the

          4  current law has not proven effective in stopping

          5  this, has it?

          6                 MR. YU: The current law, definitely

          7  not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, I think

          9  these points are very important. And thank you very

         10  much for your testimony.

         11                 MR. YU: Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, Council

         13  Member Gerson would have a lot more questions for

         14  you.  Thank you. I'm sorry there is some confusion

         15  that another committee needs the room. I want to

         16  thank everyone for their work today, especially my

         17  staff and Alan Gerson's staff and Council Member

         18  Gerson, for all your work, and I look forward to

         19  working with everyone here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just, Mr.

         21  Chairman, I just would like to note for the record

         22  that Frieda Bradlow is submitting, who is a former

         23  Chair of the Noise Committee of Community Board 2,

         24  and an environmental activist and expert, is

         25  submitting written testimony for the record.
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          2                 She delivered this in person and we

          3  want to acknowledge that this will be entered fully

          4  onto the record, studied and thank her for all her

          5  hard work.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, thank you,

          7  Ms. Bradlow. And thank you for your support and for

          8  your written statement. It is entered into the

          9  record. Thank you all for your hard work, and we

         10  will meet here again soon. Thank you, Council Member

         11  Gerson. The meeting is adjourned.

         12                 (Written testimony read into the

         13  record.)

         14

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Frieda K. Bradlow

         18  Community Board 2, Manhattan

         19

         20                 In the late 1990s the Chair of CB2,

         21  now Councilman Alan Gerson and I, Chair of the CB2

         22  Subcommittee on Noise, organized a public hearing on

         23  motorcycles. Over 200 people attended and most

         24  testified on the issues plaguing them regarding the

         25  local concentration of these vehicles. Drag racing,
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          2  showboating, illegal parking and noise were among

          3  the prevalent topics raised.

          4                 Present at our hearing was David

          5  Mangeim, President of the American Motorcycle

          6  Organization. Mr. Mangeim, a recognized expert,

          7  educated us on the NYS Motor Vehicle regulations as

          8  well as the practice of alterations to factory

          9  produced muffler systems, known as Straight Pipes.

         10  These so called "Straight Pipes" are clearly illegal

         11  and a major cause of noise complaints.

         12                 Without hesitation, we of Community

         13  Board 2-M support both Intro. 218 and Intro.416 as

         14  steps towards control of a disturbing and disruptive

         15  situation. Neither of these two codes, however,

         16  adequately solve the problem of enforcement by the

         17  NYPD. Restrictions on procedures make it difficult

         18  for officers to identify enforceable violations.

         19                 I am aware that Mr. Mangeim has

         20  repeatedly offered the NYPD his expertise in

         21  training personnel in the visual recognition of

         22  illegal alterations. This service, offered to at

         23  least four Commissioners, has been rejected. When I

         24  arranged such training at my own precinct, the

         25  Manhattan 1st, 16 officers attended and an immediate
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          2  result was evident. The use of Varick Street as a

          3  drag strip and the parking of altered bikes at a

          4  triangle on Broome Street diminished immediately.

          5                 We support both of these bills

          6  enthusiastically, with the addition of a plea to

          7  focus training of officers in each police precinct

          8  as to procedures which would hold up in court. It

          9  otherwise would be a very touchy thing to impose

         10  heavy fines or confiscate a vehicle. It appears to

         11  make sense that all police officers become

         12  conversant with the regulations and receive training

         13  in the enforcement process, including visual

         14  recognition of illegalities.

         15                 Please pass both of these Introduced

         16  bills with the additions suggested.

         17                 Respectfully Submitted, Frieda K.

         18  Bradlow, Representing Community Board 2-Manhattan.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 11:33 a.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 14th day of December 2006.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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